
Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

June 18, 2018 Planning Advisory Commission Meeting PACKET

PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING PACKET.PDF

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/2da748c3-378b-4922-a9cd-e56c8c1cf1f6


Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 14, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_MAY2018_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request for map amendment submitted by David Lorentz to rezone 11.35 acres from A2 (Agriculture 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 41.014.1500. 4900 Scout Ridge RD Cannon Falls, 
MN 55009. Part of the SE ¼ of the NE¼ in Sect 14 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

PACPACKET_LORENTZ.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: IUP Request For Home Business
Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Steve Jacobsen (Cannon Custom Cabinets) to 
reestablish a home-based cabinetry business destroyed by fire. Located at 30700 Oxford Mill RD 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Parcel 41.013.5501. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE¼ and SE¼ of the SW¼ in 
Sect 13 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. A3 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_JACOBSEN_JUNE2018.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For A Contractors Yard (Alfred Bear)
Request for CUP submitted by Alfred Bear (Bear ’s Overhead Door) to establish a Contractors Yard for a 
commercial door service and installation business. 37509 County 4 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027. Parcel 
33.023.0600. Part of the NW ¼ of SW ¼, Sect 23 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned 
District.  

PACPACKET_BEAR.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For A Contractors Yard (Thomas Demartini)
Request for CUP submitted by Thomas Demartini (Demartini Trucking) to establish a Contractors Yard 
for a commercial trucking business. TBD County 9 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027. Parcels 25.029.0309 and 
25.0290303. Part of the NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 111 Range 16 in Belle Creek Township. A1 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_DEMARTINI.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For A Contractors Yard (Simanski Metals LLC) 
Request for CUP submitted by Simanski Metals LLC (Kevin Simanski) to establish a Contractors Yard 
for a commercial hauling and transport business. 29409 HWY 58 BLVD, Red Wing, MN 55066. Parcels 
34.008.1400 and 34.008.1500. Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼, Sect 08 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek 
Township. A2 and B2 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_SIMANSKI_CUP_CONTRACTOR_YARD.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:



Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 14, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_MAY2018_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request for map amendment submitted by David Lorentz to rezone 11.35 acres from A2 (Agriculture 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 41.014.1500. 4900 Scout Ridge RD Cannon Falls, 
MN 55009. Part of the SE ¼ of the NE¼ in Sect 14 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

PACPACKET_LORENTZ.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: IUP Request For Home Business
Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Steve Jacobsen (Cannon Custom Cabinets) to 
reestablish a home-based cabinetry business destroyed by fire. Located at 30700 Oxford Mill RD 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Parcel 41.013.5501. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE¼ and SE¼ of the SW¼ in 
Sect 13 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. A3 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_JACOBSEN_JUNE2018.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For A Contractors Yard (Alfred Bear)
Request for CUP submitted by Alfred Bear (Bear ’s Overhead Door) to establish a Contractors Yard for a 
commercial door service and installation business. 37509 County 4 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027. Parcel 
33.023.0600. Part of the NW ¼ of SW ¼, Sect 23 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned 
District.  

PACPACKET_BEAR.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For A Contractors Yard (Thomas Demartini)
Request for CUP submitted by Thomas Demartini (Demartini Trucking) to establish a Contractors Yard 
for a commercial trucking business. TBD County 9 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027. Parcels 25.029.0309 and 
25.0290303. Part of the NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 111 Range 16 in Belle Creek Township. A1 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_DEMARTINI.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For A Contractors Yard (Simanski Metals LLC) 
Request for CUP submitted by Simanski Metals LLC (Kevin Simanski) to establish a Contractors Yard 
for a commercial hauling and transport business. 29409 HWY 58 BLVD, Red Wing, MN 55066. Parcels 
34.008.1400 and 34.008.1500. Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼, Sect 08 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek 
Township. A2 and B2 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_SIMANSKI_CUP_CONTRACTOR_YARD.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/36c54329-cb8e-43b9-ba0c-00d694fa2af0


Page - 1 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Board Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Ron Allen, Tom Drazkowski, Len Feuling, Tom Gale, Darwin Fox, Marc 
Huneke, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Sarah Pettit 

Commissioners Absent: None 

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak, 
Zoning Assistant Ryan Bechel 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Nystuen; seconded by Commissioner Huneke to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 7:0 (Commissioner Feuling absent) 

2. Approval of Minutes 
2Motion by Commissioner Drazkowski; seconded by Commissioner Huneke to approve the 
previous month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 7:0 (Commissioner Feuling absent) 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

There were no reported conflicts of interest.  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: Request for CUP for a Utility Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by Nokomis Hiawatha LLC (applicant) and Douglas Stegemann 
(owner) for a Utility Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5 acres. Parcel 28.016.0300. TBD HWY 19 BLVD, Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of 
the SW ¼ of NE ¼ in Sect 16 Twp 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. A2 Zoned District. 

Dan Nokomis (Applicant) was present to represent the application. 

Ryan Bechel (Bechel) presented the staff report and attachments.  

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Tad Ulrich 30730 CTY 8 BLVD Cannon Falls, MN stated he is not necessarily opposed to the 
project but he is concerned about the potential impacts to the value of his property. His 
residence is due east of the proposed project site. He added the applicant has made some 
concessions to the location and did move the project area north to reduce visual impacts to his 
property, however, he still feels the site will be highly visible from his vantage point.  

Commissioner Nystuen asked for clarification of the location of the proposed Black Hill’s 
Spruce specified in the application. 

Staff clarified that it was to be put along the east boundary of the project site. 

Commissioner Allen asked if it would be a single row of Black Hill’s spruce and how tall they 
would be. 

The Applicant clarified that they are currently proposing one row of the 2 to 5 year old trees 
but was unsure of the exact height they would be at the time of planting.  

Commissioner Allen suggested that if two rows of trees were planted, that in time the solar site 

 
 
 
 



Page - 2 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
would likely be hidden from view from the residence to the east.  
3After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Nystuen and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the public hearing. 
Motion carried 7:0 

Commissioner Allen commented that he has observed many of the previously permitted solar 
sites and that the vegetative cover seems to be effective once established. He stated that 2 rows 
of trees would provide adequate screening of the site as viewed from the east as the vegetation 
matured over time.  

Commissioner Fox agreed with Commissioner Allen’s suggestion of 2 rows of trees.  
4Motion by Commissioner Allen seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• add condition #12 to staff’s suggested conditions; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and; 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP submitted 
by Nokomis Hiawatha LLC (applicant) and Douglas Stegemann (owner) for a Utility Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5 acres. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans;  

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and the solar energy system 
company shall be maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review and approval prior to construction of the facility;  

6. Vegetative screening shall be established according to submitted plans within 1 year of 
completion of the facility; 

7. Applicants’ shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix of native vegetation to establish on disturbed areas of 
the site; 

8. Applicants’ shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Building 
Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 22 (Agricultural District); 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 25 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 3 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
12. Applicants shall provide a revised landscaping plan specifying 2 staggered rows of Black 

Hills Spruce or similar species be installed along the easterly boundary of the solar 
garden. 

Motion Carried 7:0 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendments (Rezones) 
Request for map amendments submitted by Stanton Township to rezone 39 parcels from A3 (Urban 
Fringe District), A2 (Agriculture District) and A1 (Agriculture Protection District) to R1 (Suburban 
Residence District). Parts of the SE ¼ of Section 30, NE ¼ of Section 36, NE ¼ of Section 24, NW ¼ 
and SE ¼ of Section 13 all located in Township 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

7:19 PM Commissioner Feuling arrives. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments. 

Commissioner Gale questioned if the rezoned parcels could be subdivided in the future as a 
result of the rezone to R1. 

Hanni replied that the majority of the lots would not be able to be subdivided and comply with 
septic system requirements for 2 sites on each lot and building setback requirements due to the 
size of the parcels. She further noted that R1 zoned parcels can only be subdivided for 
additional building sites through the Platting process. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Kao Yang 6035 327th ST Way, Cannon Falls, MN stated she is the neighbor directly to the east 
of the parcels to be rezoned on “map 2” (Oxford Hills Plat). She raised concerns regarding 
adverse impacts to wildlife in the area and animals on her property if the parcels adjacent to 
her property were rezoned to R1 and allowed to be further subdivided. She also was concerned 
with impacts to privacy on her property.  

Robert Kick (PID# 28.030.4102) added concerns regarding drainage and erosion issues if the 
parcels on “map 2” were allowed to be subdivided and developed in the future. 

Chuck Schwarzhoff 33130 58th Ave Path commented that the only access available for the 
parcels on the east side of “map 2” is off of 331st ST which is a gravel road. He stated that there 
is considerable runoff in the area during weather events. He is concerned that parcels 
410360500 and 410361800 could be divided in the future and increase dust an access issues in 
the area. He asked for clarification of the minimum lot size for the R1 Zone.  

Hanni responded that the minimum lot size is 20,000 sq ft but that has to include sites for 2 
septic systems so that is not really feasible. She noted that parcel 410360500 has severe 
topographical challenges that would make it unlikely that any additional dwelling sites could 
be established on the parcel. She reminded the PAC that Stanton Township also has a more 
restrictive minimum parcel size of 5 acres that would also restrict any future proposed 
subdivision of the properties. 

Mr. Schwarzhoff suggested that it would be impractical to rezone the lots if additional lots 
couldn’t be created in the future. 

Hanni responded that the rezoned lots would have reduced setbacks and uses that are 
appropriate for the residential areas in which they are located. Furthermore, the zoning would 
mirror the residential zoning of Stanton Township for the parcels which was the impetus for 
the rezone request. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 4 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
David Fick 5817 315th ST Way questioned what the benefit to the landowners would be. 

Hanni responded the setbacks would be reduced and the zoning would match the zoning 
currently in place by Stanton Township. This would provide relief for property owners with 
small lots that need to request variances to property line setbacks to do any building due to the 
size of their lots and the large setback requirements of agricultural districts.  

Mr. Fick questioned if this would allow for additional dwelling sites in the involved sections. 

Staff clarified zoning dwelling density standards for A1, A2, and A3 zoning districts.  

Mr. Fick asked if the rezones would result in changes to property taxes. 

Hanni responded that staff verified with Goodhue County Finance and Taxpayer services that 
taxes are based on the actual use of the property and not the prescribed zoning district. 
Therefore, the taxes would not be changed as a result of a rezone. All the subject properties are 
currently being taxed as residential. 

Commissioner Nystuen questioned how many potential dwelling sites could be created in the 
ag districts as a result of the rezones.  

Hanni responded that Map 1 would be the only area that would result in additional dwelling 
density for the section; however, over three-quarters of that section is owned and operated by 
Syngenta (commercial seed corporation). 

Commissioner Pettit asked for clarification if the properties requested to be rezoned were 
already zoned residential by Stanton Township. 

Hanni replied yes that is her understanding from conversations with township officials. 

Commissioner Pettit asked if the 2 parcels that are proposed to be “split-zoned” on map 1 were 
also split-zoned by Stanton Township. 

Hanni replied she has not received clarification from Stanton Township on that matter as of 
yet. The reason for the split zone of those two parcels is to allow the land that is farmed to be 
continued to be used for agriculture which is not permissible in R1 zones. 

Commissioner Pettit asked why the two larger parcels on map 2 in question earlier 
(410360500 and 410361800) were not also split zoned. 

Hanni replied that those 2 parcels are only used for residential uses at this point and the 
landowners did not express any interest in split-zoning. She noted that the larger 11.65 acre 
parcel would necessitate 3 different zoning districts for that parcel to be split-zoned given the 
existing residence is located in the center of that parcel.  
5After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Allen to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Page - 5 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
6Motion by Commissioner Feuling seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendments in Stanton 
Township as listed: 

PIN ACRES OWNER 
Current 

Zone 
New 
Zone 

410300600 0.25 WALLACE J HAMP A1 R1 
410300800 0.26 GREGORY L ANDREWS A1 R1 

410301100 (southerly 304 feet) 10.37 GLEN EMERY A1 R1 
410301300 0.39 NICHOLAS C LARSON A1 R1 

410301600 (southerly 300 feet) 2 TROY D ARMSTRONG ET AL A1 R1 
410302100 0.75 STANTON TOWNSHIP A1 R1 
410302101 0.28 GREGORY L ANDREWS A1 R1 
410302200 1.4 BRIAN K VALEK A1 R1 
410302300 0.26 STANTON TOWNSHIP A1 R1 

     
PIN ACRES OWNER 

Current 
Zone 

New 
Zone 

410361700 3.55 JOSEPH S CROSBY A2 R1 
410361800 6.49 BRUCE D SHOWEL A2 R1 
410361900 4.24 MITCH A OTTO A2 R1 
410252600 0.53 DANIEL C LUCE A2 R1 
410360200 1.49 JON C WERSAL A2 R1 
410360300 1.46 MITCH A OTTO A2 R1 
410360301 1.75 LOUISE M BOWMAN A2 R1 
410360500 11.57 TROY A ISENBERG A2 R1 
410360600 0.63 LOUISE M BOWMAN A2 R1 
410360601 0.71 LOUISE M BOWMAN A2 R1 
410360700 1.67 DEAN R CLARE A2 R1 
410360800 2.09 STEVEN M RICHTER A2 R1 
410360900 1.72 QUENTIN L GARLETS JR A2 R1 

     
PIN ACRES OWNER 

Current 
Zone 

New 
Zone 

410133600 0.5 JOHN W HOGAN A3 R1 
410133700 2.46 DAVID A SCHULTZ A3 R1 
410133800 0.62 ARLENE B ERICKSON A3 R1 
410133900 1.15 BRETT K KLAVON A3 R1 
410134200 1.07 WALTER W PIERCE A3 R1 
410134300 1.38 JOSHUA T HUNEKE A3 R1 
410134600 0.53 CARRIE VOVK A3 R1 

 
 
 
 



Page - 6 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
410134700 0.91 CASEY T CARLSON A3 R1 
410134800 0.83 STEPHANIE HALBERT A3 R1 
410134900 3.37 BRYANT BECHTHOLDT A3 R1 
410135100 1.44 TIMOTHY M LANGDON A3 R1 
410135200 0.94 CHRISTOPHER STRICKLAND A3 R1 
410135400 1.14 LARRY L STRAIN A3 R1 
410240200 1.33 SCOTT OLSON A3 R1 
410240300 3.86 CHAD MILLER A3 R1 
410240400 5.18 DANIEL BANKS A3 R1 
410240500 5.18 KERRY R BANKS A3 R1 

 

Motion carried 8:0 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility  
Request by Doug Mahoney (applicant/owner) for CUP for a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction 
Facility.  Proposed mining includes a limestone quarry and sand/gravel pit and associated 
processing/transport equipment and facilities.  The total site area is 61.5 acres. The area to be 
mined is approximately 13.4 acres.  This CUP proposes to reopen an inactive/lapsed non-
metallic mining operation located at 32245 296th Street, Red Wing, MN 55066. Parcel 
32.009.1201. Part of the S1/2 of NW1/4 and the N ½ of the SW 1/4, Sect 09 Twp 112 Range 13 in 
Florence Township. A2 Zoned District.  
 

Doug Mahoney (Applicant) was present to represent his application. 

Hanni noted that this is the first mining proposal submitted since the non-metallic mineral 
extraction article (Article 14) received a comprehensive revision in 2004. Hanni stated that 
due to the substantial size of the application, only a subset of the key components was provided 
in hard copy to members of the PAC to reduce printing and mailing costs. A complete copy of 
the applicant’s submittal is available online. Hanni reminded the PAC that townships have 
statutory authority to be more restrictive than the county and it is the township’s 
responsibility to administer and enforce their adopted zoning standards. The applicant is 
required to follow the most restrictive requirement placed upon them. She further added that 
additional state and federal regulations (e.g. MNSHA) will apply to the operation and PAC 
should maintain focus on whether or not the proposal meets the counties adopted standards. 
Hanni stressed that the application for consideration is not proposing any extraction of Frac 
sands (Jordan Sandstone silica sands) and if the applicant wishes to mine those materials in 
the future he would be required to return to the PAC and request an amendment to do so.  

Wozniak presented the staff report and appendixes.  

The Applicant added that he purchased the mine 25 years ago for the purpose of mining it. He 
stated that when the county switched the reregistration process to an electronic format that he 
failed to keep up with his registrations and fell out of compliance. He wishes to re-establish the 
mine to its historical use. He added that the majority of the materials extracted would be 
utilized for local road and bridge projects.  

Wozniak noted that the due to the new submittal standards adopted by the county, the 
application before the PAC is by far the most robust and detailed mineral extraction 
application the county has been provided to review. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 7 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Beth Knutson (Florence Township Planning Commission/Land Use Committee Member), 
Kristen Eide-Tollefson (Florence Township Land Use Committee Member), and Jan Bruce 
(Florence Township Supervisor/Lake City Chamber of Commerce/Land Use Committee 
Member) provided a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) highlighting Florence 
Township’s comprehensive planning initiatives and reviewed a number of topics of concern 
regarding the applicants proposal including potential impacts to sensitive features, aesthetics, 
cultural resources, economic development, and potential impacts to the character of the area. 

Commissioner Drazkowski mentioned that the mined has existed since the 1970’s and 
questioned if any data existed to back up their assertion that mining would negatively affect 
the ecological and natural resources in the area or if any environmental violation of any kind 
exists on public record.  

Jan Bruce replied that she did not know the answer to the question. 

The Applicant responded that areas surrounding the mine have had issues (e.g. Mount 
Frontenac Golf Course) but there have been no environmental violations at the subject site.  

Beth Knutson mentioned that a TEP (WCA Technical Evaluation Panel) review has not yet 
been completed for the proposed use which may answer some of the questions regarding 
impacts to the wetland features south of the site. 

Commissioner Gale asked for clarification regarding Florence Township standards compared 
to the county’s standard. 

Beth Knutson replied that the Township ordinances builds off of the County’s regulations and 
the main difference is that the Township would issue an IUP instead of a CUP. She also noted 
that the Township has more restrictive bluff setback standards and protection requirements.  

Commissioner Allen asked whether the township had an official position regarding the 
proposal.  

Beth Knutson replied that the township has not received a complete application to act upon 
and therefore has not taken an official position.  

Hanni noted that the county and township exercise dual authority and the Applicant has 
worked since late last year to submit a complete application meeting all the new application 
requirements to the county.  

Commissioner Allen asked if the Applicant would be able to operate the mine if he didn’t 
receive township approval 

Hanni replied that the Applicant will need to obtain all his approvals prior to legally 
commencing operations and that Florence Township will be responsible for ensuring the 
applicant has met their ordinance requirements.  

Kristen Eide-Tollefson noted that staff’s recommended conditions do not specify that the 
Applicant follows local regulations in addition to county, state, and federal requirements. 

Hanni replied the standard condition of approval for county CUP’s is to require applicant’s to 
follow the county requirements and those above the county authority level. 

Kristen Eide-Tollefson stated she was concerned that township requirements should be noted 
to make sure the Applicant is aware that he needs township approvals. 

Hanni reminded the PAC that the applicant and county and township officials have met on site 

 
 
 
 



Page - 8 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
at the subject property twice to discuss his proposal and he is well aware that he will need 
township approvals in addition to those of the county. 

Wozniak added that the township has also endorsed the application stating they have been 
made aware of the Applicant’s request. 

Jim McIlrath (Supervisor Florence Township) commented that the Applicant previously 
provided an in-depth geological study and other informational materials regarding his 
proposal to the Township at a meeting but the Township does not have trained staff available 
to evaluate the material. He added that Mr. Wozniak has helped the township digest some of 
that information but there are still many questions remaining.  

Ted Tollefson 28477 Lake Ave Way, Frontenac, MN stated that the bluffs in the subject locale 
define the area and provide both intrinsic and economic value. He mentioned that many of the 
economic activities in the area are dependent upon the aesthetic value of the natural features 
in the area that would be impacted by the industrial activities and processes involved in 
mineral extraction operations.  

Kathy-Jo Roadster 35189 Staley Park Road is the Director of Lake City Tourism Bureau and 
agreed with the comments provided by Ted Tollefson. 
7After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Allen to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Hanni commented that this is a unique situation given it is a re-establishment of an existing 
mine but the Applicant has met the county’s stringent application requirements. 

Wozniak mentioned he had discussed the wetland area with Beau Kennedy (Goodhue County 
SWCD) and the key items needed from his aspect were the volume of water to be drawn and 
the depth at which it would be accessed. He added that the MN DNR and TEP would be 
evaluating those impacts along with Goodhue County SWCD staff as part of their review. 

Commissioner Drazkowski mentioned that the Applicant has provided a thoughtful and robust 
application which addresses all the requirements of the Goodhue County Ordinance and 
project would provide necessary building materials that would be needed to build projects 
associated with projected development in the Frontenac area. He added that the existing mine 
is in a location that is not surrounded by residences. He stated he would be in favor of 
approval of the request.  

Commissioner Feuling questioned what happens to the wash water after it is used for 
processing. 

Wozniak replied that some of the water is evaporates but the majority is typically recycled. He 
stated there are 3 settlement pond proposed to allow sediment to settle out of the water prior 
to reuse. He noted that the quantity of water to be drawn is handled by the DNR through 
issuance of water appropriation permits.  

The Applicant clarified that he has reached out to the DNR to submit his water appropriation 
permit application. He stated he has made Bill Huber (DNR Area Hydrologist) aware of his 
request. 

Wozniak pointed out that map “B1” of the applicant’s submittal provides detail regarding 
water extraction and storage pond facilities.  

 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Wozniak mentioned that the Applicant will be required to get a variance to allow mineral 
extraction to take place in the portions of the mine that fall within the bluff impact zone.  

Commissioner Gale asked how long it would take to mine the aggregates from the site. 

The Applicant responded it is not possible to give an accurate timeline given the dependency 
upon material demand but he estimated approximately 40 years.  

Commissioner Allen asked the Applicant if he was aware that he is going to need township 
approvals as well. 

The Applicant responded he is. 

Hanni stressed that the request for information is very intense compared to the previous 
version of the mineral extraction ordinance and mentioned that the Applicant has met those 
requirements.  

Commissioner Fox questioned what would happen if the Applicant were unable to get some of 
the approvals (DNR, MPCA, TEP etc.) required for him to operate. 

Hanni responded that the Applicant cannot begin mining until he has received those approvals 
as they are required in the suggested conditions. If he is unable to get those approvals and then 
needs to alter his plan in a way that is not approved in his initial CUP, he would be required to 
request an amendment to his CUP which would be reviewed again through the CUP process. 

The Applicant added that some aspects of the operation (such as washing) may not take place 
for 10 years if there is no need, but he wants to get approvals ahead of time to be prepared to 
meet future demand. 

Commissioner Pettit asked how long the mine had been in operation prior to the registration 
lapsing.  

The Applicant replied the mine had been active since 1978 and operating until 2007. He stated 
he has worked on the mine since then and has owned it for 20 years. 

Commissioner Pettit asked what the volume of traffic historically was at compared to his 
proposal today. 

The Applicant responded that it is difficult to compare historical volume due to the size of 
transportation equipment used today versus 30 years ago. He stated that traffic volume is 
heavily dependent upon material demand. 

Commissioner Fox stated he would be in favor of tabling the decision to gather more 
information from SWCD regarding water appropriation, to get a better understanding of the 
plan going forward with Florence Township, and to allow the PAC additional time to review 
the extensive materials before them.  

Commissioner Nystuen commented that the Applicant has done a lot of work to meet the 
application requirements of the county and he appears to have met all the requirements set 
forth in the county ordinance. He added that it is the Township’s responsibility to 
independently review applications and administer their adopted ordinances when they have 
elected to do so. 

Commissioner Allen asked when the request would go before the County Board of 
Commissioners for review and if the township would weigh in prior to that decision. 

Hanni replied the first meeting in June (June 5th 2018). 
 
 
 
 



Page - 10 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Beth Knutson replied the township has not yet received a complete application from Mr. 
Mahoney. 

Hanni noted that the County is required to make a decision within the confines of the “60-day 
rule (Statute 15.99). 
8Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request of Doug Mahoney for a 
Conditional Use Permit to operate a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility.  Subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. This CUP replaces and removes any prior authorization conduct mining of Non-Metallic 
Minerals Resources on the subject property; 

2. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
included with the Conditional Use Permit application submitted to Goodhue County 
Land Use Management Office, minor adjustments may be made to approved mining 
plans with approval from the Zoning Administrator; 

3. Hours of Operation shall be limited to 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., Monday through 
Saturday.  Any exceptions must comply with Article 14, Section 6, Subd. 4. 

4. No blasting may occur prior to submittal to the Land Use Management Department of a 
plan that specifies the location and timing of blasting; measures to be taken to mitigate 
noise, vibration and dust; method of notifying nearby property owners within ½ mile, 
Florence Township and the Zoning Administrator. 

5. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations.  Evidence shall be provided to the County of all required permits, including 
but limited to MPCA NPDES Permit, and MNDNR Water Appropriate Permit (if 
required) prior to start of Mining Operations. 

6. No Mining Operations shall commence unless the Applicant/Owner has provided evidence 
that a Water Appropriation Permit has been obtained from the Minnesota Department of 
Natural Resources, or written confirmation that a Water Appropriation Permit is not 
required.   

7. The Applicant shall obtain a written confirmation from Wetland’s Coordinator, Beau 
Kennedy, indicating Wetland’s review requirements have been prior to start of Mining 
Operations. 

8. The owners will cooperate with inspections of the facility in coordination with Land Use 
staff. 

9. All final grades and restoration must be consistent with the approved and amended 
reclamation plans. 

10. Within twelve (12) months after completion of mineral extraction or after termination 
of the permit, all equipment, vehicles, machinery, materials, and debris shall be 
removed from the subject property. 

11. Site reclamation must be completed within twelve (12) months after completion of 
mineral extraction, after termination of the permit, or according to an approved plan 
schedule. Failure to annually register the mineral extraction facility will be considered 
termination of the mineral extraction facility and the twelve (12) month period begins. 

12. Security.  The applicant/owner (Doug Mahoney) of the property on which the mineral 
extraction is occurring, shall post a letter of credit, bond, or cash escrow in $70,875.00.  

 
 
 
 



Page - 11 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
If the required Security is provided in the form of a “Letter of Credit” or a “Performance 
Bond”, it shall be subject to review and approval by the County Attorney prior to start of 
Mining Operations.  Goodhue County shall be listed as the eligible party to access the 
Security to reimburse the following costs upon failure of the Applicant/Owner to 
comply with requirements of this Conditional Use Permit: 

A. Costs of bringing the operation into compliance with the mineral extraction 
permit requirements including site monitoring and enforcement costs. 

B. Extraordinary costs of repairing roads due to the special burden resulting from 
the hauling of materials and traffic associated with the operation. 

C. Site restoration. 
D. Costs the county may incur in enforcing the terms of the conditional use 

permit, and land use permit, including attorney’s fees. 
E. A Bond or Letter of Credit shall be valid for a minimum of one (1) year; and 

shall include a provision for notification to the County at least thirty (30) days 
prior to cancellation or non-renewal. 

13. Mineral Extraction and related activities are limited to Parcel A and Parcel B as legally 
described on the Certificate of Description for:  Doug Mahoney (Drawing Number S-
7492, certified by Marcus S. Johnson, Minnesota License NO. 47460, Date: April 26, 
2018.   

 
Located at 32245 296th Street, Red Wing, MN 55066, Parcels 320091201, Part of the W 1450.00 
feet of the S ½ of the NW ¼ and that part of the W 1450.00 feet of the N ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 
9, Twp 112 N, Range 13 W, Florence Township. 
 
Motion Carried (6 yes; 2 no)  

5. Other discussion 
• Staff Update: 

 
Hanni discussed efforts to fill the vacant Zoning Assistant position. 

 
9Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Feuling, second by Commissioner Drazkowski, 
to adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at 9:37 PM.  
 
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Ryan Bechel; Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Page - 12 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 14, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  
Motion carried 8:0. 

2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  
Motion carried 8:0. 

3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  
Motion carried 8:0 

4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a Utility Scale Solar Energy System CUP 
submitted by Nokomis Hiawatha LLC. 

Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 8:0 
6Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the rezone requests submitted by Stanton Township. 

Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 8:0 
8Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a Non-metallic Mineral Extraction 
Facility submitted by Doug Mahoney 

Motion carried 6:2 
9 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 
 
 
 

                                                 



5/21/2018

1

Florence Township 
‘From Vision to Implementation’

Florence Township: 
A History of Land Use Planning and Zoning

Vision and Planning – 1996 to present

1996 ‐ Wells Creek Plan

1999 ‐ Florence Long Range 
Planning Committee

2003 ‐ Florence Comp Plan 

2011 ‐ Plan Update Process 

2013 ‐ Comp Plan Update

Land Use Tools 

2001‐ Goodhue County Natural 
Resource Inventory

2005 – Land Use Committee

2006 – Growing by Design; Grant 
1000 FOM

2007 – Sensitive Features 
Mapping

2008 – Land Use Regulatory 
Tools;  Grant 1000 FOM

Ordinances 

2008 ‐ Sensitive Features 
Ordinance Development

2011 ‐ Excavation and Mining 
Ordinance Development

2015 ‐ Ordinance Adoption

IMPLEMENT 
THE VISION

ATTACHMENT 1



5/21/2018

2

2003

Vision: 
Proactively develop, 
preserve and maintain 
a safe, thriving and 
respectful community 
that sustains its 
historic integrity, rural 
character and natural 
and recreational 
resources. 

Florence Township:  Growing By Design  

Water Resource Sensitivity 

“If you want to protect your water, then protect your bluffs”.

Natural Resource Sensitivity 



5/21/2018

3

Sensitive Features Ordinance

Florence Township has composed the natural 
features overlay district to protect and conserve 
natural features for the following reasons as 
portrayed in the township comprehensive plan: 

(1) The intrinsic value of natural areas and 
wildlife; 

(2) Flood control and the treatment of 
stormwater runoff; 

(3) Acknowledgment of historic resources and 
their educational and artistic significance; 

(4) Recreational amenities; and 

(5) Aesthetic and quality of life contributions. 

‘…residents and property owners declared 
their desire to strengthen these guiding 
goals and priorities in an effort to 
prevent this township from becoming an 
industrialized and heavily trafficked 
zone.’

Florence Township Comprehensive Plan Update 2013



5/21/2018

4

Bluff & Wetland Impacts, Recreation, Tourism, Traffic Safety

Topics of Concern

Goodhue County Bluff Land Protection

SECTION 1. INTENT AND PURPOSE 

Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the 
bluffs that line the many rivers and valleys of the County. These 
standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 
features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion 
and controlling the cutting timber on the slopes and tops of the 
bluffs. 



5/21/2018

5

Florence Township 
SECTION 10:  Excavation and Mining
10.2 The purpose of this section on excavation and mining is to:
(i) protect natural landscapes from excessive excavation and mining activity, 
(ii) protect water resources, aquifers, streams, and rivers from excessive 
contamination and appropriation, 
(iii) minimize soil erosion, 
(iv) protect agricultural land and farming activity, 
(v) prohibit large‐scale extraction and mining of industrial minerals, 
(vi) protect existing recreational and tourist businesses, 
(vii) protect residents from unhealthy air emissions from mining activity,
(viii) prevent the industrialization of agricultural, open space and residential 
communities, 
(ix) minimize road and bridge damage from high‐volume and heavy truck traffic 
hauling industrial minerals, and 
(x) minimize land use conflicts. 



5/21/2018

6

Goodhue County Mineral Extraction
ARTICLE 14: Mineral Extraction, Section 1

PURPOSE:

Subd. 1 Identify areas in County where mineral extraction is most 
appropriate and minimize conflict with other land uses

Subd. 3 Establish standards that prevent or minimize environmental 
and aesthetic impacts on extracted properties, adjacent properties 
and the County as a whole.

Bluff & Wetland Impacts, Recreation, Tourism, Traffic Safety

Topics of Concern



5/21/2018

7

Recreation, Aesthetic and Community Amenities

MRT Bikeway 

Corridor for Mississippi 
Blufflands State Trail 

Frontenac State Park 
Expansion 

Florence Township Comprehensive Plan                             
HIGHWAY 61 CORRIDOR AND TRANSPORTATION 

Goals and Priorities 
A. To assure Florence Township influence in Highway 61 corridor site plans, rail and highway development 

decisions. 

Strategies for Achieving Goals and Priorities
5. Assure that site development along Highway 61 corridor is compatible with Florence Township comprehensive 
land use plan. 

6. Discourage, deter, and prohibit site development along Highway 61 corridor that is incompatible with Florence 
Township comprehensive land use plan. 

7. Discourage, deter, and prohibit development of any industrial facilities and 
activity along Highway 61 corridor, including manufacturing, processing, 
transportation and mining. 
10. Develop strategies for preventing excessive high volume, heavy truck traffic…



5/21/2018

8

MN DOT Cultural Resources Map

The MRT runs on the shoulder of Highway 61 down the Hiawatha River 
Valley, with planned additional byways.



5/21/2018

9

MetroQuest Round 1 Survey Summary

In order to broaden the geographic extent of outreach for the Great River Road Corridor Management 
Plan, an interactive online survey was available from July 15, 2014 to October 15, 2014…It included  
…opportunities to provide feedback on Great River Road themes, places, and stories. A total of 307 
people took the survey.



5/21/2018

10



5/21/2018

11

Goodhue County Bluff Land Protection

SECTION 1. INTENT AND PURPOSE 

Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the 
bluffs that line the many rivers and valleys of the County. These 
standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 
features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion 
and controlling the cutting timber on the slopes and tops of the 
bluffs. 



 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 18, 2018 
Report date:  June 8, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request for map amendment submitted by David Lorentz to rezone 11.35 acres from A2 (Agriculture 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 41.014.1500. 4900 Scout Ridge RD Cannon Falls, MN 
55009. Part of the SE ¼ of the NE¼ in Sect 14 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): David Lorenz  
Address of zoning request: 4900 Scout Ridge Rd, Cannon Falls 
Parcel: 41-014-1500 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 14,T112N,R18W  
Township Information: Stanton Township endorsed acknowledgement of the Applicant’s request. 
Zoning District: A2 (Agricultural District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and Project Summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  

1. Access to the Parcel(s): 
MnDot Access: Mr. Lorenz is in the process of acquiring a new access from MnDot 
directly from Hwy 19 to the property.  A MnDot driveway permit must be issued prior 
to any building permit request for a new dwelling.  If the property is split, all 
subsequent parcels need to use the same access driveway. 
 

2. Existing uses:  
Health and Wellness Center (Center): The property currently has an IUP for a Health 
and Wellness Center on the site from 2014.   One of the conditions of the IUP is that 
the “Permit shall terminate upon sale of the property.”  An email from Mr. Lorenz 
dated June 28, 2017 states “We plan to terminate the conditional use permit for the 
business on the property and close the business 30 days from the approval or sooner 
if needed.”  
 
Nursery: It is our understanding that the Nursery business has been discontinued. 

 
Dwelling site:  In 2013 Mr. Lorenz received a variance from the County for another 
dwelling site in the already full Quarter/Quarter of the Section.  He indicated a 
location for the dwelling in the northwest corner of his property.    

 
3.   Additional Building sites: Goodhue County’s R1 zone allows for a minimum lot 

size of 20,000 square feet, however, you will need enough area for the two septic 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


systems (SSTS) so realistically the minimum is determined by the size of potential 
buildings and the location of two SSTS sites, along with meeting setbacks such as 
sidelines, well, and road setbacks.  It is also our understanding that Stanton 
Township has a minimum lot size of 5 acres, in which case there would only be two 
building sites if the property is split. 

 
4.  Plat: If Mr. Lorenz is successful in changing the zone to R1 and later decides to split 

the property, a plat will be required which will need Township approval. 
 
 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request 
from David Lorentz to rezone 11.35 acres from A2 (Agriculture District) to R1 (Suburban Residence 
District). Parcel 41.014.1500. 4900 Scout Ridge RD Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the SE ¼ of the 
NE¼ in Sect 14 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 



 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

Project Review per Article 3, Section 2, Subd. 5-10: 
 
Subd. 5  A.   The names and addresses of the petitioner or petitioners and their signatures 

to the petition.  See application  
B.  Survey information: See application 
C.  The current and proposed district:  A2 to R1 
D.  The current use and the proposed use of the land.  The current use of the 

land is a nursery and health fitness center.  The proposed use is 
to eliminate the nursery and fitness center, and create 2 dwelling 
sites. 

E. The reason for the requested change of zoning district. The applicant has 
one approved dwelling site in the northwest corner of the property 
which will be split into another parcel; they would like to use the 
existing buildings as an additional dwelling site location. 

F.  A copy of the soil map showing the soils types within the proposed boundary 
and the surrounding area. The applicant has submitted this information. 
G.  Prime Farmland Rating of the soil types in F. 
 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows: 

Soil Name Slope 
Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total Prime Farmland Rating 

Sparta Loamy Sand 6-12% 3.9 39.6% Not Prime Farmland 
Estherville-Ridgeport 0-6% 0.19 1.9% Farmland of Statewide Importance 
Waukegan Silt Loam 0-2% 1.72 17.1% Prime Farmland 
Rasset Sandy Loam 6-12% 0.44 4.5% Farmland of Statewide Importance 
Ridgeton-Eden Prairie 12-20% 0.01 0.1% Not Prime Farmland 
Hawick Sandy Loam 18-45% 2.37 24.0% Not Prime Farmland 
Dakota Silt Loam 0-3% 1.27 12.8% Prime Farmland 

 
H.  A statement of how the requested change is compatible with the Goodhue 
County Comprehensive Plan including but not limited to the following: 

1.  The environmental impacts of the proposed use of land on the: 
a. Groundwater 
b. natural plant and animal communities 
c. existing trees and vegetation 
d. bluffland stability 
e. shoreland stability 

This area already has been granted 2 additional variances to add 
to the 1/4/1/4 for additional dwelling sites (including one on this 
site).  The parcel is within 1 mile of the west side of Cannon Falls. 
An additional dwelling would need to be in compliance with SSTS 
regulations, Setbacks, and Shoreland regulations. 
The northerly portion of the property is in shoreland, and the 
north property line is approximately 600 feet south of the 
shoreline of Lake Byllesby. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 



2.  The compatibility with surrounding land uses 
There are 11 dwellings within 1000 feet of the property.  The 
surrounding zoning is A2; A3 zoning is approximately 600 feet 
to the east. 
There is an existing CUP and IUP on the property that would not 
be allowed in an R1 zoning district and the applicants have 
agreed to eliminate those uses if they are successful in rezoning 
to R1.  The County has recently rezoned a number of parcels in 
Section 13 to R1 due to their residential uses and lot sizes. 
3. The physical and visual impacts on any scenic or historic amenities 

within or surrounding the proposed parcel. 
We do not indicate any historic amenities in the immediate 
vicinity except the historic Byllesby dam which is not visible 
from the parcel. 

Subd. 6 The housing density of the affected Section 
 There are 7 dwellings in the SE1/4, with another 4 within 1000 feet 

north and east of the property. 
Subd. 7 The impact on any surrounding agricultural uses 

This property is not being farmed; there are crop farming activities to 
the south and across Hwy 19, but the change of zone is not expected to 
impact those operations.  

Subd. 8 The impact on the existing transportation infrastructure 
The access to the property needs to be worked out with MnDot prior to 
any building permits being issued. 

Subd. 9 The impact on surrounding zoning districts 
 The property is currently zoned A2.  The area near the parcel has a 

number of dwellings, partially wooded and farmed.  We do not see a 
negative impact to changing the zone as long as the dwelling density 
does not exceed a total of 2 dwellings on the parcel or subsequent splits. 

Subd. 10 A statement concerning the cumulative effect and compatibility of the requested 
zoning change on the affected Township and any cities located within 2 miles of the 
proposed parcel. 
Adding an additional dwelling site in this location does not appear to 
have negative effects on the surrounding area or Cannon Falls. 

Subd. 11. Additional information as may be requested by the Planning Commission or zoning 
staff. 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 





Lorentz 41-014-1500

Goodhue County

Search Results: Search by PIN
Override 1
PIN
GoodhueCo_PLSS

Roads 9.600
Township or Other Roads

Major Roads 4,800
US Highway

State Highway
County Roads 4,800

County Roads - Gravel
County Roads - Paved

Roads 4,800
Township or Other Roads

April 4, 2018

ArcGIS WebApp Builder

0 0.05 0.10.025 mi

0 0.055 0.110.0275 km

1:3,120















 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 18, 2018 
Report date: June 8, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: IUP for a Tier-3 Home Business  
Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Steve Jacobsen (Cannon Custom Cabinets) to 
reestablish a home-based cabinetry business destroyed by fire. Located at 30700 Oxford Mill RD 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Parcel 41.013.5501. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE¼ and SE¼ of the SW¼ in 
Sect 13 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. A3 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Steve Jacobsen 
Address of zoning request: 30700 Oxford Mill RD Cannon Falls, MN 55009 
Parcel(s): 41.013.5501 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the SW ¼ of the SE¼ and SE¼ of the SW¼ in Sect 13 Twp 
112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 
Township Information: Stanton Township endorsed acknowledgement of the Applicant’s request. 
Zoning District: A3 (Urban Fringe District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Submitted Comments 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
The applicant (Steve Jacobsen) has operated Cannon Custom Cabinets at his residence since 2001. 
The business designs, builds, and installs cabinets for new construction and remodel projects. The 
applicant is requesting an IUP for a “Tier-3” Home Business to reestablish his commercial cabinetry 
business that was destroyed by fire earlier this year.   

Tier-3 Home Businesses are required to receive IUP’s in A3 Zoned Districts when employing 3 or 
more non-resident employees or when activities are conducted in a detached accessory structure 
greater than 3400 square feet in gross floor area. 

Project Summary: 
Property / Building Information: 
• The subject property is the applicant’s primary residence and consists of a single parcel 

comprising approximately 5.63 acres.  Per GCZO Article 11, Section 12 the minimum lot size for a 
Tier-3 Home Businesses is 5 acres. 

 The property is bordered by R-1 zoning districts to the north and south; A3 to the east and west.  
Adjacent land uses include undeveloped woodlands to the north and east, medium-density 
residential to the south (Woodland Heights Addition), and low-density residential/agricultural 
land to the west. 

 The applicant intends to construct a 3426 square foot stick-built detached accessory building for 
the business. The main part of the “L-shaped” structure will measure 30ft x 72ft with an 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


approximately 30ft x 36ft extension.  

The applicant has proposed a 186 square foot “tuck under” lower level beneath the 30ft x 36ft 
extension to accommodate cold storage for personal items (lawn care equipment etc.) 

A building permit will need to be approved by the Goodhue County Building Permits Department 
prior to construction of the facility. 

Per GCZO Article 11, Section 12 a Tier-3 Home Business may occupy no more than 7,200 square 
feet of gross floor area. 

 A restroom will be available for employees within the proposed facility. An existing septic system 
used exclusively for the business provides wastewater treatment for the facility. The system was 
not damaged by the fire.  

Sanitary system compliance will be reviewed by the Goodhue County Environmental Health 
Department in conjunction with a request for building permit approval.  

 Solid waste disposal services are provided by a local professional business. 

 There is no exterior signage associated with the business on the property. No exterior signage is 
proposed with this application.  

 An exterior flood-light provides exterior lighting for the structure’s main front entrance. The light 
will be directed toward the applicant’s existing dwelling and will be shielded from neighboring 
properties by the proposed structure.  

 No exterior storage of business related materials is proposed. 

 Noise, dust, odors, or fumes are generated as a result of the cabinet making process will be 
confined within the proposed structure.  

 Parcel access is located off of Oxford Mill Road on the west side of the property.  Oxford Mill 
Road is an asphalt-surfaced roadway. Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service 
the facility. 

Business Information: 

 The main activity on-site is cabinet fabrication, which also includes the loading and off-loading of 
materials and finished products onto trucks and trailers. 

 Deliveries will be loaded and off-loaded on site near the applicant’s proposed building.  An 
average of 2-3 deliveries are anticipated per week. Weekly shipment quantities may fluctuate 
with demand. 

 Primary hours of operation are proposed to be year-round, Monday through Friday from 7:00 
AM to 5:30 PM.   The business occasionally operates on Saturdays and Sundays to meet demand.  

 The applicant employs 3 full-time and 2 part-time Non-resident Employees.  A maximum of 10 
non-resident employees is allowed for Tier-3 Home Businesses. 

 Typical equipment utilized for the business includes woodworking equipment (saws, planers, 
power tools, hand tools, etc.), truck, and trailer.  

 No traffic beyond that which is reasonable for the local transportation network is anticipated to 
be generated.  

 No on-site retail or wholesale activities are proposed.  

 The applicant has an asphalt paved “u-shaped” driveway as well as additional concrete-surfaced 
areas to accommodate parking needs. Pursuant to GCZO Article 11, Section 16 minimum off-
street parking provisions shall be one parking space for every 500 square feet of floor area. A 
minimum of 7 off-street parking spaces is required for this facility. 

Ample room exists on the property to fulfill parking requirements.  

 Goodhue County has not received any official complaints regarding the applicant’s business 
operations since it began operating in 2001. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 



 The Stanton Township Planning Commission will review the applicant’s request on 6/12/18. The 
Stanton Township Board will make a final decision regarding the proposal on 6/19/18.  

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Home Business does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties 
in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and 
impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use has been established and operating 
since 2001 without any record of conflicts with existing residential uses in the area.  

2. The establishment of the proposed Home Business is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and the majority of the business operations will be confined within the proposed 
structure. The use as proposed appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The Home Business will be conducted primarily within the proposed structure to prevent and 
control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a 
nuisance. Furthermore, the applicant’s lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such 
a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Steve Jacobsen 
for an IUP to reestablish a Tier-3 Home Business. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this IUP;  

2. Primary hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday, 7:00 AM to 5:30 PM; Saturday 
and Sundays from 7:00 AM to 5:30 PM on occasion; 

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

5. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

6. Applicant shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve compliance with 
the Goodhue County SSTS Ordinance; 

7. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 11, 
Section 12, Home Businesses and Article 23 A3, Urban Fringe District. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 



























 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 18, 2018 
Report date: June 8, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Contractors Yard (Alfred Bear) 
Request for CUP submitted by Alfred Bear (Bears Overhead Doors LLC) to establish a Contractors 
Yard for an in order to expand and existing Overhead Door business. 37509 County 4 Blvd, Goodhue, 
MN 55027. Parcel 33.023.0600. Part of the NW ¼ of the SW 1/4, Sect 33 Twp 111 Range 15W in 
Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Alfred Bear  
Address of zoning request: 37509 County 4 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027 
Parcel: 33.023.0600 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NW ¼ of the SW 1/4, Sect 33 Twp 111 Range 15W in 
Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District.  
Township Information:  Goodhue Township acknowledged the applicants’ request and offered no 
comments to the County. 
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture Protection District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Contractors Yard Performance Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant (Alfred Bear) owns a 20-acre parcel located at 37509 County 4 Blvd in Section 23, 
Goodhue Township.  Mr. Bear resides on the premises and has been operating an Overhead Garage 
Door business since the County approved a Conditional Use Permit to allow the business to operate 
in a building of up to 5520 square feet in March 2012. 

Several months ago, Mr. Bear inquired about adding a 48 foot x 128 foot (6,144 sq. ft.) addition for 
cold storage related to his business.  Under County provisions for Home Businesses Mr. Bear would 
have been limited to a maximum of 7,200 square feet.  Combined with his existing building, the 
addition would exceed the allowable 7,200 square feet of space devoted to business use. 

Provisions for Contractors Yards were added to the GCZO in April of 2018 in an effort to classify 
non-agriculturally dependent commercial and industrial uses, which may be compatible with the 
Agricultural Districts but are not appropriately categorized as a “Commercial and Industrial Uses 
Primarily Intended to Serve the Agricultural Community”. 

The GCZO defines a Contractors Yards as “a site used for storage, maintenance, and staging of 
vehicles, equipment, and materials related to contracting work in any of the building trades, 
landscaping, road building, sewer installation, transport and hauling, or similar professions in which 
work is principally conducted off-site.” The Contractors Yard performance standards are attached to 
this report for reference.  

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


 
Mr. Bear waited until the Contractors Yard provisions were in place and has now made application to 
seek approval for his business to operate as a Contractors Yard.  Subject to approval of his 
Conditional Use Permit Application, this would allow him to construct the proposed 6,144 square 
foot addition to his existing building for cold storage space. 
 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary: 
Property / Building Information: 
 The applicant (Alfred Bear) owns a 20-acre parcel located at 37509 County 4 Blvd in Section 23, 

Goodhue Township.  Per GCZO Article 11, Section 33 the minimum parcel size for a Contractors 
Yard is 3 acres. 

 Mr. Bear currently resides in an existing dwelling on the property. 

 Adjacent zoning districts include properties located within the A1 (Agriculture Protection 
District) to the north, east, south, and west.  

Adjacent land uses include agriculture, and low-density residential. 

 The nearest residences are located approximately 1100 feet north of the proposed business use 
(Gary Voth) and 1100 feet south (Bradley Voth) . Per GCZO Article 11, Section 33 “materials, 
structures, and operations associated with the Contractors Yard shall be located a minimum of 
100 feet from adjacent neighboring dwellings existing at the time of permit application.” 

Mr. Bear has planted evergreen trees along of the north and south sides of the portion of his 
property where his dwelling and business structure are located.  

 The applicant is proposing to construct a 48 foot x 128 foot (6,144 sq. ft.) addition for cold 
storage related to his business. This would add to his existing 5,600 square foot structure. 

A building permit will need to be approved by the Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Department prior to construction of proposed addition. 

 The property is located near the intersection of County 4 BLVD approximately 2,200 feet north of 
County 9 BLVD (both asphalt-surfaced roadways). The site has an existing gravel surfaced 
driveway meeting GCZO performance standards for access drives. Adequate emergency vehicle 
access is available to service the proposed facility. 

 There are currently no restrooms in the business structure and none are proposed.  Employees 
utilize restroom facilities within Mr. Bear’s dweling when on-site.  Since employees are primarily 
working off-site, and Mr. Bear has noted having only 3 non-resident employees, County 
Environmental Health Staff have indicated they are comfortable with the current arrangement.  

 No exterior signage is being proposed.  

 “Dusk to dawn” lights on the north side and by the dock are in place for security reasons.  

 No changes in stormwater management are being proposed.  The business structure and 
proposed addition are located 250 feet from the south property line, 360 feet from the north 
property line and 200 feet from the County 4 Blvd Right-of-Way.  There are many acres of lawn 
or pasture to absorb stormwater runoff from impervious surfaces. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 



Business Information: 

 The Applicant has noted 2-3 deliveries per week with very limited impact on the existing County 
roads that provide access to the site. 

 Hours of operation are proposed from 6:30 AM to 6:30 PM.  The Applicant has not specified 
whether business operations are conducted on weekends. 

 The applicant currently has three non-resident employees.  

 Minimum off-street parking provisions are not specified for Contractors Yards. Pursuant to 
GCZO Article 11, Section 16, minimum off-street parking provisions shall be shall be determined 
by using the requirements for a closely related use which is listed.  

Ample room exists on existing gravel-surfaced areas on the property to fulfill off-street parking 
requirements.  

 Current solid waste disposal services will be continued.  

 No exterior storage of materials.  

 There will be no sale of retail items on the premises. 

 There is a negligible potential for dust generation on the property due to the gravel-surfaced 
driveway and parking areas. There are not nearby neighbors that would be impacted given the 
small amount of gravel surfaces and the 1100 foot separation distance to the nearest dwellings. 

 The Applicant previously planted evergreen trees north and south of the portion of the site 
occupied by the dwelling and business structures.  The existing trees will continue to mature. 

 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Contractors Yard does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties 
in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and 
impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The majority of the adjacent property is utilized 
for row-crop agriculture or feedlots that would not be inhibited by the proposed use. No 
complaints have been received since the business began operations in 2012.   

2. The establishment of the proposed Contractors Yard is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The dwelling development density is currently exceeded for the section and no new 
dwellings may be administratively permitted in the area. New feedlots would be subject to 
meeting the setback from Mr. Bear’s existing dwelling but are not required to adhere to 
reciprocal setback requirements for Commercial/Industrial uses. The use is proposed to meet all 
development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and appears compatible with 
adjacent land uses.  

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use. The local 
transportation network appears capable of supporting the proposed use without appreciably 
diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. 

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicant’s 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 



Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Alfred Bear (Bear 
Overhead Doors LLC) for a CUP to establish a Contractors Yard.  Upon approval, this Conditional 
Use Permit will replace and cause the 2012 Conditional Use Permit for a Home Occupation Permit to 
be revoked. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP 

2. Hours of operation shall be year-round, Monday through Friday from 6:30 AM to 6:30 PM; 

3. Applicant shall obtain a driveway access permit from Goodhue County Public Works prior to 
establishing the use; 

4. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

5. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

6. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Land Use Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

7. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 21 
A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) and Article 11 Section 33 (Contractors Yard); 

8. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 





 
ARTICLE 11    PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Section 33.    CONTRACTORS YARD  
Subd. 1. Contractors Yards shall comply with the following standards:  

A. The minimum parcel size shall be 3 acres and shall meet road access standards. 

B. The site shall not be located within Shoreland, Floodplain, or Blufflands. 

C. Materials, structures, and operations associated with the Contractors Yard shall 
be located a minimum of 100 feet from adjacent neighboring dwellings existing 
at the time of permit application. 

D. Non-Resident Employees, except designated office or shop personnel, may 
occupy the site only for the purpose of gathering equipment and supplies, 
necessary fabrication, or general maintenance. 

E. There shall be no on-site retail sales. The sale of incidental stock-in-trade shall 
not be considered retail sales. 

F. Exterior storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment may require screening 
from public view.  

G. The routes and conditions of local transportation networks will be part of the 
review process to determine if they are capable of supporting the proposed use 
without appreciably diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. When 
appropriate, the applicant shall bear the costs of required dust mitigation 
measures. 

 

Subd. 2. PERMITTED USES: Contractors Yards shall be allowed as shown in the table below. 
 

 A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 B-1 B-2 I CR MXH 

Contractors Yard C/I C/I C/I NP C/I C/I P NP NP 
 

KEY:     P = Permitted Use     C = Conditional Use Permit     I = Interim Use Permit     NP = Use not permitted in the district 
 

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 11  Amended January 2, 2018 



25
2'

-0
"

200'-0"100'-0"892'-0"

11
1'

-7
5 8 "

36
0'

-0
"

128'-0"

48
'-0

"

PROPOSED ADDITION
SHOWN SHADED

SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/32'' = 1'-0''



by
 m

e o
r u

nd
er 

my
 di

rec
t s

up
erv

isi
on

 an
d

I h
ere

by
 ce

rti
fy

 th
at 

thi
s p

lan
 w

as
 pr

ep
are

d

tha
t I

 am
 a 

du
ly 

Re
gis

ter
ed

 A
rch

ite
ct

un
de

r t
he

 la
ws

 of
 th

e s
tat

e o
f M

inn
es

ota
.

da
te:

DRAWING

Re
g. 

#4
05

07
GO

OD
HU

E

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L 
DR

AW
IN

GS
 F

OR
:

BE
AR

 O
VE

RH
EA

D 
- P

RE
LI

M
 - 

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

TR
Im

en
sio

n D
es

ign

LA
KE

 C
IT

Y,
 M

N 
55

04
1

CH
RI

ST
OP

HE
R 

PE
TE

RS
ON

10
6 E

AS
T 

LY
ON

 A
VE

NU
E

PH
ON

E:
 (6

51
)-3

45
-0

14
4

M
IN

NE
SO

TA
ev

ide
nc

e o
f t

he
se

 re
str

ict
ion

s.

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 an
y o

the
r w

or
k o

r p
ro

jec
t

pe
rm

iss
ion

 of
 T

RI
me

ns
ion

 D
es

ign
. V

isu
al

co
nta

ct 
wi

th 
thi

s n
ota

tio
n s

ha
ll 

co
ns

tit
ute

of
 T

RI
me

ns
ion

 D
es

ign
 an

d s
ha

ll 
no

t b
e

co
pie

d, 
dis

clo
se

d t
o o

the
rs 

or
 us

ed
 in

Th
es

e d
raw

ing
s, 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, d
es

ign
 an

d
co

nc
ep

ts 
are

 an
d s

ha
ll 

rem
ain

 th
e p

ro
pe

rty

in 
wh

ole
 or

 in
 pa

rt 
wi

tho
ut 

the
 w

rit
ten

JO
B 

NU
M

BE
R:

  
CO

M
M

EN
TS

:

RE
VI

SI
ON

S:

DA
TE

:   
  3

-2
3-

18
DR

AW
N 

BY
: C

HR
IS

 P
ET

ER
SO

N

128'-0"

48
'-0

"

48'-0"18'-0"

88
'-0

"

80
'-0

"
8'

-0
"

88
'-0

"
48

'-0
"

PROPOSED COLD STORAGE

EXISTING
SHOP

FLOOR PLAN

EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

29 GA. ROOF SHEATHING

2"x4" SPF #2 ROOF PURLINS
  FLAT OVER TRUSSES

3 PLY 2"x6" TOP PLATE
  CONT.

2-H1 OR 2- H2.1 SIMPSON
  HURRICANE CLIPS @ EACH
  TRUSS (SEE PAGE 33 OF
  STRUCTURAL COMPS.)

2"x6" SPF #2 HORIZ. WALL
  GIRTS @ 24" O.C.
3-PLY 2"x6" COLUMN @ 4'-0"
  O.C. UNDER TRUSSES

29 GA PROPANEL OR 
  STRONGPANEL SHEATHING

4-16d TOE-NAILS MIN
  @3-PLY TO PLATE
2"x6" TRTD PLATE

#4 @ 28" O.C. VERT
  CENTER IN WALL

3-#4 HORIZ.
  TOP, CTR, BTM
  16" O.C.

2- #4 CONT.

6x6 - #10 MESH OR
  #4 @ 24" O.C. E.W. IN 
  FLOOR

2" RIGID INSULATION

THERMAL BREAK

6" POURED CONC. WALL

SEE PLAN FOR ANCHOR
  BOLT LAYOUT

WALL SECTION

25
2'

-0
"

200'-0"100'-0"892'-0"

11
1'

-7
 5

/8
"

36
0'

-0
"

128'-0"

48'-0"

PROPOSED ADDITION
SHOWN SHADED

SITE PLAN

66
0'

-0
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8'' = 1'-0''

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8'' = 1'-0''

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8'' = 1'-0''

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/16'' = 1'-0''

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8'' = 1'-0''

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0''

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS











rbechel
Sticky Note





 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 18, 2018 
Report date: June 8, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Contractors Yard (Thomas Demartini) 
Request for CUP submitted by Thomas Demartini (Demartini Trucking) to establish a Contractors 
Yard for a commercial trucking business. TBD County 9 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027. Parcels 
25.029.0309 and 25.029.0303. Part of the NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 111 Range 16 in Belle Creek 
Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Thomas Demartini  
Address of zoning request: TBD County 9 BLVD Goodhue, MN 55027 
Parcel(s): 25.029.0309 and 25.029.0303 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 111 Range 16 in Belle Creek Township  
Township Information: Belle Creek Township endorsed acknowledgment of the applicants’ request. 
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture Protection District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Contractors Yard Performance Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant (Thomas Demartini) is proposing to purchase 5.43 acres from the current owner (Les 
Lundell) to establish a Contractors Yard to serve as a base for his commercial trucking operation 
(Demartini Trucking). The applicant intends to construct a 54 ft x 112 ft (6048 ft2) shop to provide a 
workspace for storing and maintaining trucks and equipment related to his business.  

Contractors Yards were amended into the GCZO in April of 2018 in an effort to classify non-
agriculturally dependent commercial and industrial uses which may not be incompatible with the 
Agricultural Districts but are not appropriately categorized as a “Commercial and Industrial Uses 
Primarily Intended to Serve the Agricultural Community”. 

The GCZO defines a Contractors Yards as “a site used for storage, maintenance, and staging of 
vehicles, equipment, and materials related to contracting work in any of the building trades, 
landscaping, road building, sewer installation, transport and hauling, or similar professions in which 
work is principally conducted off-site.” The Contractors Yard performance standards are attached to 
this report for reference.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary: 
Property / Building Information: 
 The applicant (Thomas Demartini) has a purchase agreement with the current owner (Les 

Lundell) to purchase approximately 5.43 acres of land located in the northeast corner of the 
subject parcels (PID #’s 25.029.0309 & 25.029.0303) Per GCZO Article 11, Section 33 the 
minimum parcel size for a Contractors Yard is 3 acres. 

 No dwelling exists on the site and the applicant has not proposed any such use. 

Section 29 is an A1 zoned section allowing a maximum of 4 dwellings per section. The section 
currently has 10 dwellings. No density is available to administratively establish any additional 
dwellings in the section. 

 Adjacent zoning districts include A2 (Agriculture District) to the north; A1 (Agriculture 
Protection District) to the east, south, and west.  

Adjacent land uses include agriculture, low-density residential and undeveloped forest-land. 

 The nearest residence is located approximately 600 feet north of the proposed site (Joshua 
Wyatt). Per GCZO Article 11, Section 33 “materials, structures, and operations associated with 
the Contractors Yard shall be located a minimum of 100 feet from adjacent neighboring 
dwellings existing at the time of permit application.” 

A stand of existing mature trees provides some buffering of the site from this adjacent residence.  

 The applicant is proposing to construct a 54ft x 112ft (6,048 total sq ft) pole-style shop to store 
trucks, repair equipment, and provide office space.  

A building permit will need to be approved by the Goodhue County Building Permits Department 
prior to construction of the facility. 

 The property is located near the intersection of CTY 8 BLVD and CTY 9 BLVD (both asphalt-
surfaced roadways). The site will have a gravel surfaced driveway meeting GCZO performance 
standards for access drives. A driveway access permit will need to be obtained from Goodhue 
County Public Works.  

 The applicant is proposing to install a “u-shaped” gravel drive with a single access to CTY 9 BLVD 
on the north side of the property.  

Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the proposed facility. 

 The applicant is proposing to install a holding tank septic system to service the facility. A sanitary 
permit will be required from the Goodhue County Environmental Health Department prior to 
issuance of any building permits for the proposed structure.  

 No exterior signage is existing or proposed.  

 2 “dusk to dawn” yard lights and 4 security lights (1 on each side of the proposed shop) will 
provide exterior lighting for the facility.  

 Stormwater will be collected via roof guttering and directed to a proposed 4 ft wide drainage 
channel along the east and south perimeter of the proposed parcel. The drainage channel would 
consist of a 1 to 2 foot deep channel lined with “weather rock.” The channel would drain into an 
existing forested low area in the northwest corner of the property.  

The Applicant is also proposing a small storage basin north of the proposed structure to collect 
and treat storm water.  

 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 



Business Information: 

 The applicant currently has a fleet of 4-5 trucks that would be stored on site. He anticipates that 
up to 10 trucks may be stored on site in the future if his business were to expand. 

Trucks will typically be parked inside of the proposed shop area when not in use.  

 Approximately 10-15 vehicle trips per day are anticipated from the site. Generally, trucks will 
leave in the morning and return in the evening at the end of the work day. 

 Hours of operation are proposed to be year-round, 7-days per week from 4:00 AM to 8:00 PM. 

 The applicant currently has 5 employees. Employees are typically off-site transporting loads. 1 
office/shop employee may be onsite during operating hours.  

 Minimum off-street parking provisions are not specified for Contractors Yards. Pursuant to 
GCZO Article 11, Section 16, minimum off-street parking provisions shall be shall be determined 
by using the requirements for a closely related use which is listed.  

The Zoning Administrator has determined Contractors Yards to be most similar to “Industrial 
Establishments” which require a minimum of one parking space for every three employees. The 
minimum number of parking stalls required for this request is 3. 

Ample room exists on the property to fulfill off-street parking requirements.  

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided by Waste Management Inc. Any hazardous 
materials or fluids generated shall be properly disposed of.  

 Exterior storage of business equipment and materials is proposed to be located on the south side 
of the proposed building and an existing forested area along the western half of the property to 
provide screening from public view.  

 There will be no sale of retail items on the premises. 

 There is the potential for some dust generation on the property due to traffic on the gravel-
surfaced driveway and parking areas. The applicant intends to apply water to control dust as 
necessary. 

 Truck start-up and operation as well as repair work will generate noise on site.  

The applicant has proposed to plant trees along the north side of the driveway and trucks will be 
started within the shop to limit noise impacts to surrounding properties. 

A vegetative screening plan was not provided with the application.  

 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Contractors Yard does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties 
in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and 
impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The majority of the adjacent property is utilized 
for row-crop agriculture that would not be inhibited by the proposed use. Existing and proposed 
vegetative screening, planned operations, and the proposed location of the site will help to buffer 
adjacent existing residential uses from potential impacts.  

2. The establishment of the proposed Contractors Yard is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The dwelling development density is currently exceeded for the section and no new 
dwellings may be administratively permitted in the area. New feedlots are not required to adhere 
to reciprocal setback requirements for Commercial/Industrial uses. The use is proposed to meet 
all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and appears compatible 
with adjacent land uses.  

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 



drainage and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use. The local 
transportation network appears capable of supporting the proposed use without appreciably 
diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. 

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicant’s 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Thomas Demartini 
for a CUP to establish a Contractors Yard. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The CUP shall be subject to subdivision review and approval by Goodhue County Land Use 
Management; 

3. Structures associated with business operations shall not be used for habitation; 

4. The number of semi-tractors on site shall not exceed 10;  

5. Hours of operation shall be year-round, 7-days per week from 4:00 AM to 8:00 PM; 

6. Applicant shall obtain a driveway access permit from Goodhue County Public Works prior to 
establishing the use; 

7. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

8. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

9. Grading and drainage plans shall be approved by Land Use Management staff prior to 
implementation; 

10. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

11. Applicant shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve compliance with 
the Goodhue County SSTS Ordinance; 

12. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 21 
A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) and Article 11 Section 33 (Contractors Yard); 

13. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 





 
ARTICLE 11    PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Section 33.    CONTRACTORS YARD  
Subd. 1. Contractors Yards shall comply with the following standards:  

A. The minimum parcel size shall be 3 acres and shall meet road access standards. 

B. The site shall not be located within Shoreland, Floodplain, or Blufflands. 

C. Materials, structures, and operations associated with the Contractors Yard shall 
be located a minimum of 100 feet from adjacent neighboring dwellings existing 
at the time of permit application. 

D. Non-Resident Employees, except designated office or shop personnel, may 
occupy the site only for the purpose of gathering equipment and supplies, 
necessary fabrication, or general maintenance. 

E. There shall be no on-site retail sales. The sale of incidental stock-in-trade shall 
not be considered retail sales. 

F. Exterior storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment may require screening 
from public view.  

G. The routes and conditions of local transportation networks will be part of the 
review process to determine if they are capable of supporting the proposed use 
without appreciably diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. When 
appropriate, the applicant shall bear the costs of required dust mitigation 
measures. 

 

Subd. 2. PERMITTED USES: Contractors Yards shall be allowed as shown in the table below. 
 

 A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 B-1 B-2 I CR MXH 

Contractors Yard C/I C/I C/I NP C/I C/I P NP NP 
 

KEY:     P = Permitted Use     C = Conditional Use Permit     I = Interim Use Permit     NP = Use not permitted in the district 
 

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 11  Amended January 2, 2018 





















 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 18, 2018 
Report date: June 8, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Contractors Yard 
Request for a CUP by Simanski Metals LLC (Authorized Agent: Kevin Simanski) to construct and 
operate a Contractors Yard.  Parcel 340081400 and Parcel 340081500. Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of 
Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. 
 

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Simanski Metals LLC (Authorized Agent: Kevin Simanski) 
Address of zoning request: 29409 Hwy 58 Blvd, Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcels: 34-008-1400 and 34-008-1500 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek 
Township. 
Township Information: The Conditional/Interim Use Permit Application was signed by the Hay 
Creek Township Clerk on March 25, 2018, indicating that the Township acknowledges having been 
made aware of the application made to the County.   
Current Zoning Districts:  Parcel 340081400 A2 (Agricultural District), Parcel 340081500 B2 
(Highway Business) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and Project Summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
 
Simanski Metals LLC currently owns two parcels of property located at the intersection of Hay Creek 
Hills Trail and State Hwy 58, in Hay Creek Township.  Tax Parcel #340081400 is 1.78 acres (with 
frontage on State Hwy 58) and is currently in the A-2 (Agriculture) Zone District.  The 1.78-acre 
parcel is currently vacant. Buildings that previously existed on the site have been demolished and 
removed.  Tax Parcel #340081500 is 2.28 acres and is in the B-2 (Highway Business) Zone District.  
Parcel #340081500 is currently vacant.   
 
The Simanski’s are proposing to reconfigure the existing parcels to create a 3.20-acre parcel and a 
0.84-acre parcel.   
 
As part of their Contractors Yard proposal Simanski Metals LLC., are proposing to construct a 100 x 
120’ (12,000 sq. ft.) heated and insulated commercial building to house their roll-off trucks, semi-
tractors and related equipment.  They also plan to store empty roll-off containers in the SW corner of 
the gravel lot with an occasional full container on a short-term basis. Zoning district boundaries 
would remain the same as current conditions. 
 
The proposed 0.84-acre parcel is intended to include a portion of a shared access driveway and some 
additional space that would be available to an unspecified business use.  The proposed 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 8 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


reconfiguration of property would require subdivision approval as a separate action. 
 
Simanski Metals LLC., recently applied for a Conditional Use Permit for a Junk Salvage Reclamation 
Yard and for a “Change of Zone” for part of the property included in the current request.  A public 
hearing was held and these prior items were considered at the April 16, 2018, Planning Advisory 
Commission Meeting.  The Planning Advisory Commission took action to recommend denial of these 
previously proposed requests.  The Applicant subsequently withdrew their applications prior to 
County Board consideration. 
 
Following a recent text amendment (April 2018) that added provisions for Contractors Yard to the 
County’s Zoning Ordinance; the Simanski’s have chosen to apply for a Conditional Use Permit to 
construct and operate a “Contractors Yard” on the subject property. 
 
Article 10 of the Zoning Ordinance includes the following definition: 
 
CONTRACTORS YARD. A site used for storage, maintenance, and staging of vehicles, equipment, 
and materials related to contracting work in any of the building trades, landscaping, road building, 
sewer installation, transport and hauling, or similar professions in which work is principally 
conducted off-site. 
 
Article 11 (Performance Standards) includes various standards for Contractors Yards as follows: 
Staff has noted in italics and bold text how the Applicant’s proposal matches up with the below 
referenced standards. 
 
Section 33.    CONTRACTORS YARD   
Subd. 1. Contractors Yards shall comply with the following standards:  

A. The minimum parcel size shall be 3 acres and shall meet road access standards. 

The Applicant will need to complete subdivision of the property to establish the 
proposed 3.2-acre parcel or in the alternative combine the 1.78-acre parcel 
with the 2.28-acre parcel to meet the minimum 3-acre parcel size. 

B. The site shall not be located within Shoreland, Floodplain, or Blufflands. 

The proposed site is not located within Shoreland, Floodplain, or Blufflands. 

C. Materials, structures, and operations associated with the Contractors Yard shall be located a 
minimum of 100 feet from adjacent neighboring dwellings existing at the time of permit 
application. 

The site plan as proposed will keep materials, structures, and operations 
associated with the Contractor’s Yard located in excess of 100 feet from 
adjacent neighboring dwellings existing at the time of permit application. 

D. Non-Resident Employees, except designated office or shop personnel, may occupy the site 
only for the purpose of gathering equipment and supplies, necessary fabrication, or general 
maintenance. 

The applicant has stated that they operate six commercial trucks.  They leave 
weekday mornings by 6:30 a.m. and return in the late afternoon.   

E. There shall be no on-site retail sales. The sale of incidental stock-in-trade shall not be 
considered retail sales. 

The Applicant has not referred to any plans for retail sales as part of the 
proposed “Contractors Yard”.  The Simanski’s have indicated an intent to 
establish an outdoor sales lot on a portion of the 0.84-acre parcel for the sale 
of Agricultural Equipment.  The proposed 0.84-acre parcel is located within 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 8 



the B-2 Zone District.  Outdoor sales lots are recognized as a permitted within 
the B-2 Zone. 

F. Exterior storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment may require screening from public 
view. 

The Applicant has noted on their proposed site plan and descriptive materials 
a combination of earthen berms, tree plantings, and the use of an eight-foot 
high “screen fence” to screen proposed exterior storage of roll-off containers 
and vehicles. 

G. The routes and conditions of local transportation networks will be part of the review process 
to determine if they are capable of supporting the proposed use without appreciably 
diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. When appropriate, the applicant shall 
bear the costs of required dust mitigation measures. 

Access to the site is proposed to be provided from a driveway off Hay Creek 
Trail that falls within MNDOT’s State Highway 58 Right-of-Way.  The 
Applicant has obtained a driveway permit from MNDOT. 

 
Included below is a summary of key information used to evaluate the Contractors Yard Conditional 
Use Permit request: 
 

1. Existing uses: Following acquisition of the subject property, the Simanski’s demolished 
and removed several existing structures, which were in poor condition and cleared some of 
the vegetation, which had become established on the site.  The property had been used for 
business purposes in the past.  Historical uses included the old Skyline Ballroom and 
Supper Club, camper and snowmobile sales, and a dwelling site and agricultural use. 

 
2. Proposed Uses:  Simanski Metals, LLC is proposing the following uses:  On the 

proposed 3.2 acre parcel the applicant has proposed a Contractor’s Yard for Simanski 
Metals LLC.  They plan to construct a 100 foot x 120 foot (12,000 sq. ft.)  heated and 
insulated commercial building to house their roll-off trucks, semi-tractors and related 
equipment.  They also plan to store empty roll-off containers in the SW corner of the gravel 
lot with an occasional full container on a short-term basis. 

 
The proposed 0.84-acre parcel is intended to include a portion of a shared access driveway 
and some additional space that would be available to an unspecified business use.  The 
proposed reconfiguration of property would require subdivision approval as a separate 
action.  The Simanski’s have discussed proposed construction of outdoor sales lot on a 
portion of the this proposed lot to be located within that portion of the property within the 
B-2 Zone District.   This proposed use may be allowed as a permitted land use within the 
B-2 Zone District. 
 

 
3. Reconfiguration of Parcel Boundaries: If Simanski Metals LLC is successful in 

gaining approval from the County Board of the proposed Zoning Map Amendment 
reconfiguring of the existing parcel boundaries will require platting of the property.  The 
Conditional Use Permit if approved may include a condition requiring platting of the 
subject property according to applicable provisions of the County’s Subdivision Controls 
Ordinance. 

 
4. Existing Zoning:  Tax Parcel #340081400 is 1.78 acres (with frontage on State Hwy 58) 

and is in the A-2 (Agriculture) Zone District.  The 1.78-acre parcel is currently vacant, 
buildings that previously existed on the site have been demolished and removed.  Tax 
Parcel #340081500 is 2.28 acres and is in the B-2 (Highway Business) Zone District.  

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 8 



Parcel #340081500 is located at the intersection of State Hwy 58 and Hay Creek Hills 
Trail.  Contractors Yards may be permitted by the County Board as a “conditional” or 
“interim” use in both the A-2 and B-2 Zones.   

 
5. Access to Site:  The subject property proposed for the Zoning Map Amendment request 

and CUP is located at the intersection of State Highway 58 and Hay Creek Hills Drive.  A 
Driveway Access Permit has been approved by MNDOT that restricts use of a shared drive 
access (with the Thomas Gadient Property) currently at the northeast corner the property 
and allow a driveway access point from Hay Creek Hills Drive at the southeast corner of 
the subject property.  The proposed driveway access to the site negotiates a sloped portion 
of the site and meets Hay Creek Hills Drive just beyond the limit of bituminous asphalt.  
The proposed access driveway is designed to serve both proposed lots.  If the project is 
approved and the property is subdivided as proposed a driveway access easements must be 
recorded to ensure access from Hay Creek Hills Trail to the proposed 3.20 acre parcel 
through the proposed 0.84 acre parcel. 

 
6. Roll-Off Box Storage:  The Applicant is proposing to store roll-off boxes on the g 

 
ravel surfaced area shown on the site plan.  They have indicated in there proposal that 
“MPCA, does not have any problem with storing empty or full roll-off containers.”  They 
state: “we are permitted to do so, and the monitoring will give them sufficient data to 
decide if there is an issue.”  The Applicant has further noted that “MPCA does not 
anticipate an adverse data and that any boxes that would need to be tarped on public roads 
would need to be tarped on site”.   
 
The definition of Contractors Yard reads:  “A site used for storage, maintenance, and 
staging of vehicles, equipment, and materials related to contracting work in any of the 
building trades, landscaping, road building, sewer installation, transport and hauling, or 
similar professions in which work is principally conducted off-site.”  No reference is made 
to storage of waste or recyclable materials on either a temporary or permanent basis. 
 

 
7. Screening/Buffers:  The Applicant has noted on their proposed site plan and 

descriptive materials a combination of earthen berms, tree plantings, and the use of an 
eight-foot high “screen fence” to screen proposed exterior storage of roll-off containers and 
vehicles.  They have also stated that the “truck doors on the building will face to the South, 
to minimize truck noise affecting neighboring houses to the East and North.  Having an 
insulated building will also diminish noise form maintenance work being done on 
equipment inside the building.” 
  

8. Current Violations:  Simanski Metals LLC has made some improvements to the current 
1.78-acre parcel (A2 Zone) including construction of a driveway access at the northeast 
corner of the property and a gravel parking lot area.  In addition, a variety of different 
types of containers have been placed on the property.   Evidence has been provided to the 
County illustrating truck traffic during early morning and evening hours hauling items to 
and from the site.  Planning and Zoning Administrator, Michael A. Wozniak, AICP, 
contacted Simanski Metals, LLC by letter (dated February 16, 2018; Appendix 2) to inform 
the Simanski’s that a Scrap Metals Transfer Facility would require approval of Conditional 
Use Permit or Interim Use Permit by the County.  The letter expressly stated, “Any 
operation of a Scrap Metals storage, recycling or transfer facility must cease immediately”.  
Nearby property, owners have complained that use of the property has continued.  
Photographs have been provided to County Staff to confirm this activity. 

 
9. Stormwater Management:  The Applicant obtained a storm water permit form MPCA 

in April 2018 (see attached Permit ID Number MNRo53DL8).  In addition, the Simanski’s 
met with Coty Hyllendgren and Beau Kennedy form the Goodhue SWCD during April 
2018 at the site.  They discussed storm water drainage and extending the earthen berm 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 8 



which was referenced in a follow-up e-mail form Coty attached as Exhibit C.  The 
Applicant has indicated that they intend to implement the SWCD Recommendations. 

 
 

10. Parking/Loading: The submitted site plan includes a large gravel surfaced area and 
paved driveways plus a concrete apron at the vehicular access to the proposed building 
(shop to store and service trucks).  Parking spaces have not been specifically identified.  
The applicant has not specified how many drivers or other employees are expected to be 
present on-site and/or parking personal vehicles.  There appears to be room on the 
property to provide sufficient site area for the use.  If the CUP is approved, a condition 
should require that parking spots be specified on a revised site prior to initiation of any 
site work or building construction. No on-street parking will be allowed. 
 

11. Lighting:  The applicant has indicated that they are planning to place security lighting 
on the building. They are not planning on any lights on poles anywhere on the property.  
The County requires that site lighting be directed downward towards the ground and not 
off-site. 

 
12. Hours of Operation:  The Applicant stated “their drivers leave weekdays at 6:30 AM 

and return in the late afternoon”.  In addition, they have noted that they service work is 
occasionally performed in the Shop on Saturdays.  Also, the Applicant has stated that 
there are a few Saturdays during the year that require truck use for special projects in the 
County.  They have proposed hours of operation 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM, Monday – Friday 
along with the limited Saturday activities within unspecified hours.   

 
If a determination is made to approve the CUP, a condition should be included to 
specifically identify and limit hours of operation. 

 
13. Water/Wastewater Treatment:  The applicant has indicated that plans call for use of 

an existing well and development of a new Sub-surface Wastewater Treatment System to 
serve water/wastewater needs for the proposed shop building.  The well and wastewater 
treatment system are intended to also serve future development that may occur on the 
0.84 acre parcel. 

 
Conclusions: 
The subject property included in the Simanski Metals LLC, Contractors Yard Conditional Use Permit 
request proposes a use of the property that has been organized to conform with the performance 
standards established for Contractors Yard’s in Article 11 (Section 33) of the Zoning Ordinance.  
However, the question of whether the proposed Contractors Yard will be compatible with nearby 
residential properties including a residential district (Moore’s Addition) remains.  Neighboring 
residents have raised numerous concerns regarding aesthetic and nuisance related impacts that may 
be generated by the proposed Contractors Yard.  Issues of concern include traffic safety, noise, and 
potential environmental contamination (if loaded roll-off boxes are stored on site).  Concerns also 
exist about the aesthetic incompatibility of the Contractors Yard if established in a residential area 
that is also a gateway to the City of Red Wing. 
 
Land Use Management Staff are presenting alternative approaches for action for consideration by 
the Planning Advisory Commission.  The PAC should consider any remarks received from the 
Applicant and any public comments to help guide discussion and the decision of whether to approve 
or deny the CUP request.  Draft findings of fact and working alternatives for both “denial” or 
“approval” of the proposed Contractors Yard CUP have been prepared for Planning Advisory 
Commission consideration.   
 

 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 8 



Actions for Consideration: 

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Draft Findings of Fact to support “DENIAL” of Simanski Metals LLC, Conditional Use 
Permit request to allow construction and operation of a Contractors Yard: 
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 

Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan Element 4 (Business and Industry)  

Diverse Business Objectives: 

Ensure that new and expanding commercial, industrial, and institutional uses are 
consistent and compatible with the County’s natural environment, quality of rural living, 
and the needs of County residents.  The land use being proposed as a reason for 
the Zoning Map Amendment may negatively affect the “quality of rural 
living”. 

Diverse Business Implementation Strategies: 

Direct business and industry growth to the approximately zoned districts keeping in 
mind access to public services and surround land uses.  The proposed Metals 
Recycling/Transfer Station use may be more appropriately located on a 
site not in close proximity to a residential district and relatively high 
concentration of dwelling sites. 

1. The proposed Contractors Yard use of the property is incompatible with surrounding 
residential land uses.   

2. The proposed use of the subject property will create aesthetic and nuisance related conflicts 
that may significantly impact the ability of nearby property owners to use and enjoy their 
properties.  

3. The fourteen dwellings within Section 8, in close proximity (within 1800 feet) may be 
negatively impacted by the proposed Contractors Yard. 

4. Neighborhood concerns include potential noise, traffic safety and potential unsightliness of 
the proposed Contractors Yard use. 

5. The proposed Contractors Yard use may make surrounding vacant property less desirable for 
future residential development.  

6. The Applicant has constructed site improvements and conducted business activity prior to 
obtaining required permits. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the Conditional Use Permit request from 
Simanski Metals LLC to construct and operate a Contractors Yard.  

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 8 



 
29409 Hwy 58 Blvd, Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcels: 34-008-1400 and 34-008-1500 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek 
Township. 
 
 
 
Draft Findings of Fact to support “APPROVAL” of Simanski Metals LLC, Conditional Use 
Permit request to allow construction and operation of a Contractors Yard: 
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
 Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan Element 4 (Business and Industry) 
  
 Diverse Business Objectives: 

Allow the establishment or expansion of home occupations and cottage enterprises with 
appropriate performance standards while considering the scope and scale of proposals for the 
alteration, modification, or expansion of existing businesses. 
 
Encourage new commercial and industrial ventures that create permanent job opportunities. 

 
1.  The proposed Simanski Metals LLC., Contractors Yard conforms the County’s definition for 

“Contractors Yard”, excluding the proposed temporary storage of waste and/or recyclable 
materials.  

2. The proposed Contractors Yard conforms with the performance standards for Contractors 
Yards set forth in Article 11, Section 33. 

3. The proposed Contractors Yard conformance with other applicable Zoning Ordinance 
provisions including but not limited to required yard setbacks, parking, lighting, stormwater 
management and screening.  

4. The Applicant has proposed trees plantings, but, plans do not include specifics regarding 
species, and size at the time of planting.  A more specific landscape plan is needed. 

5. The Applicant has stated that their hours of operation are 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM Monday – 
Friday and that some maintenance will be performed in the Shop on random Saturdays.  Also, 
trucking will occur on a few Saturdays each year related to certain special projects in the 
County. 

6. The Applicant has provided a copy of the require driveway access permit from MNDOT.  In 
addition, a copy of a follow-up letter from MNDOT has been provided.  The letter from 
MNDOT addresses public concerns regarding traffic safety and drainage related to the 
approved driveway access. 

7. The Applicant has provided a copy of an Industrial Stormwater Permit approved by the MPCA 
in April 2018.  Further, the Applicant has prepared plans and committed to conform with 
Goodhue SWCD recommendations related to stormwater management, site grading and 
erosion and sediment control. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the Conditional Use Permit request from 
Simanski Metals LLC to construct and operate a Contractors Yard.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The Contractors Yard shall be constructed and operated according to submitted plans, 
specifications, and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday, 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM, and Saturdays from 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 7 of 8 



9:00 AM to 1:00 PM (excluding holidays); 
3. Approval of required subdivision as proposed to reconfigure the existing 1.78-acre and 2.28 

acre parcels in order to establish a 3.20-acre parcel (Contractors Yard Site) and a 0.84-acre 
parcel.  No site improvements or building construction associated with the Contractor’s Yard 
may proceed until the subdivision is approved and recorded; with the only exception being site 
grading previously approved (Land Use Land Alteration Permit Z180026). 

4. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 
5. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited; 
6. Upon subdivision of the property the Applicant/Owner shall record a driveway access easement 

to ensure right of access for the proposed 3.20 acre parcel through the proposed 0.84 acre 
parcel to Hay Creek Hills Trail.  

7. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approval for the proposed Shop/Vehicle Storage 
structure from the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department prior to start of 
construction; 

8. Applicant shall obtain the required permit for the proposed sub-surface wastewater treatment 
system from Goodhue County Environmental Health; 

9. Prior to installation of proposed tree plantings, a detailed plan must be submitted for approval 
by the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department that specifies plant species, 
spacing and size at time of planting.  Trees plantings must be maintained for the duration of the 
Contractors Yard use and must be replaced if lost or damaged for any reasons. 

10. No municipal solid waste, demolition debris or recyclable materials may be stored on or 
transported to the property either on a temporary or permanent basis.  Only waste or recyclable 
materials generated on-site may be temporarily stored on site between scheduled 
trash/recycling pick-up. 

11. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 22 A-
2 (Agriculture District), Article 27 B-2 (Highway Business District), and  
Article 11 (Performance Standards, Section 33 – Contractor Yard). 

12. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

 
 
29409 Hwy 58 Blvd, Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcels: 34-008-1400 and 34-008-1500 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek 
Township. 
 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 8 of 8 
























	BEAR -SITE.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	BEAR - PRELIM.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	ARTICLE-11_ContractorsYards.pdf
	Section 33.    CONTRACTORS YARD

	ARTICLE-11_ContractorsYards.pdf
	Section 33.    CONTRACTORS YARD




